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 1  BEFORE THE ARIZONA POWER PLANT               LS-389
   
 2  AND TRANSMISSION LINE SITING COMMITTEE
   
 3  IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF  ) DOCKET NO.
    SALT RIVER PROJECT AGRICULTURAL      ) L-00000B-24-0223-
 4  IMPROVEMENT AND POWER DISTRICT, IN   ) 00239
    CONFORMANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS    )
 5  OF ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES SECTION  )
    40-360, ET SEQ., FOR A CERTIFICATE   )
 6  OF ENVIRONMENTAL COMPATIBILITY       )
    AUTHORIZING THE SOUTH MOUNTAIN       )
 7  TRANSMISSION PROJECT, WHICH          )
    INCLUDES THE CONSTRUCTION OF TWO     )
 8  NEW 230 KV DOUBLE-CIRCUIT            )
    TRANSMISSION LINES THAT WILL         )
 9  INTERCONNECT THE EXISTING            )
    DOUBLE-CIRCUIT ANDERSON-ORME         )
10  TRANSMISSION LINE TO A NEW           )
    SUBSTATION, EACH LOCATED WITHIN THE  )
11  CITY OF PHOENIX, MARICOPA COUNTY,    ) PREHEARING
    ARIZONA.                             ) CONFERENCE
12  ___________________________________
   
13 
   
14 
    At:       Phoenix, Arizona
15 
    Date:     October 30, 2024
16 
    Filed:    November 4, 2024
17 
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 1           BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and
   
 2  numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the
   
 3  Arizona Corporation Commission, 1200 West Washington
   
 4  Street, Phoenix, Arizona, commencing at 2:00 p.m. on
   
 5  October 30, 2024.  All parties attended via
   
 6  teleconference.
   
 7 
   
 8  BEFORE:   Adam Stafford, Chairman
   
 9 
   
10  APPEARANCES:
   
11  For the Applicant:
   
12       Matthew Derstine, Esq.
         SNELL & WILMER
13       One Arizona Center
         400 East Van Buren Street, Suite 1900
14       Phoenix, Arizona 85004
   
15       Alysha Y. Gilbert, Esq.
         SALT RIVER PROJECT AGRICULTURAL IMPROVEMENT
16       AND POWER DISTRICT
         P.O. Box 52025, PAB381
17       Phoenix, Arizona 85072-2025
   
18  For the Intervenor Banner Health:
   
19       Michelle De Blasi, Esq.
         LAW OFFICE OF MICHELLE DE BLASI
20       7702 East Doubletree Ranch Rd, Ste 300
         Scottsdale, AZ 85258
21 
    Also Present:
22 
         Gourjia Odisho, Paralegal
23       Michele Maser, Senior Legal Analyst
         Rick Hernandez - Project Manager, SRP
24       Zack Heim - Senior Director Power Delivery, SRP
         Kenda Pollio - principal with kp environmental
25 
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 1                CHMN STAFFORD: Let's go on the record.
 2                Now's the time set for the prehearing
 3  conference in the application of Salt River Project for a
 4  Certificate of Environmental Compatibility, Docket Number
 5  L-00000B-24-0223-00239 or Line Siting Case 239.
 6                Let's start with appearances, Mr. Derstine.
 7                MR. DERSTINE: Thank you, Chairman, good
 8  afternoon.  Matt Derstine, appearing on behalf of Salt
 9  River Project.  Also appearing is Alysha Gilbert,
10  in-house counsel for Salt River.  I think we have, you
11  know, Ms. Gourjia Odisho, my paralegal with Snell &
12  Wilmer with me here appearing, and we have Michele Maser,
13  who is senior legal analyst for SRP.  And then to round
14  out the SRP team, we have Rick Hernandez, who is the
15  project manager for the South Mountain Transmission
16  Project, Zack Heim, who is the senior director of power
17  delivery for SRP.  And Kenda Pollio is the principal with
18  kp environmental, the environmental consulting firm
19  supporting the project and the application.
20                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  And Ms. De Blasi.
21                MS. DE BLASI: Good afternoon, Chairman,
22  and everyone.  Michelle De Blasi, appearing on behalf of
23  Banner Health.
24                CHMN STAFFORD: And you're not expecting
25  anyone else to join you?
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 1                MS. DE BLASI: It's just me.
 2                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  All right.
 3                Mr. Derstine, I just want to confirm that
 4  the applicant has the lodging ready for the out-of-town
 5  members at the venue.  I think you're going to want to
 6  have them check in on Monday, because we're starting
 7  Tuesday at 10:00 a.m.
 8                MR. DERSTINE: Yes, I think we have made
 9  the arrangements.  I guess I'll double-check with
10  Ms. Maser in terms of if we have any current information
11  on the number of committee members who have made the
12  reservations or maybe Tod has that information, but
13  certainly a Monday check-in is -- we're ready and
14  available for that.
15                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  Excellent.  Oh, yes.
16  And if you can get the virtual links for the hearing if
17  you get those to Tod today that will be excellent.
18                MR. DERSTINE: All right.  Will do.
19                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  Looks like Banner
20  Health will be a party by right under the Statute
21  40-360.05(A)(3).  No one's disputing that, correct,
22  Mr. Derstine?
23                MR. DERSTINE: Correct.
24                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  Do all the parties
25  agree that the time of the committee to act under the
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 1  statute is March 25th, 2025?
 2                MR. DERSTINE: Yes.
 3                MS. DE BLASI: Yes.
 4                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  And, Mr. Derstine,
 5  the applicant has complied with the notice to affected
 6  jurisdictions, correct?
 7                MR. DERSTINE: We have.
 8                CHMN STAFFORD: And those are Phoenix,
 9  Maricopa County, and Arizona Department of
10  Transportation?
11                MR. DERSTINE: It is Phoenix, Maricopa
12  County, it also includes Arizona Department of
13  Transportation, the jurisdictions you mentioned.  In
14  addition, there is Gila River Indian Community, which
15  they're -- the land starts right next to the 500-kV
16  corridor, which is at the southern or the -- yeah, the
17  southern end of the project.  We're not crossing any of
18  the Indian community land, but based on their proximity
19  to the project, and then they're -- the Bureau of
20  Reclamation, by virtue of some irrigation ditches, which
21  I'm told is the state of art -- or the term of art for
22  these, as well as some small land holdings that are
23  within the project area, so they are also included in our
24  notice.
25                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  All right.  And the
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 1  Notice of Hearing posting and publishing, the applicant's
 2  complied with that as well?  What was the -- remind me,
 3  how many signs were put up?
 4                MR. DERSTINE: You're asking about
 5  publication or signs?
 6                CHMN STAFFORD: Posting first the signs.
 7                MR. DERSTINE: Okay.  We should have a --
 8  we had a little map of our --
 9                CHMN STAFFORD: I think you provided one at
10  the prehearing -- prefiling conference.
11                MR. DERSTINE: We did at the prefiling
12  conference.  I don't know if anyone has that available to
13  pull up.  I don't remember.  We have a large number of --
14                MS. POLLIO: There are 13 signs.  13.
15                CHMN STAFFORD: 13, okay.
16                MR. DERSTINE: And those, Ms. Pollio, also
17  posted those at the locations of the map that we filed at
18  the prefiling conference.
19                MS. POLLIO: That is correct.
20                CHMN STAFFORD: And what were the
21  publication dates?  And I'm assuming it was the Arizona
22  Republic?
23                MR. DERSTINE: Arizona Republic, October 1
24  and October the 8th.  And the Arizona Business Gazette,
25  October the 3rd and October the 10th.  And then a Spanish
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 1  language publication, Prensa Arizona, October the 3rd,
 2  October the 10th.
 3                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  Has -- have the
 4  parties reviewed the agenda?  Do they have any objections
 5  or additions?
 6                MR. DERSTINE: SRP has no objections to the
 7  agenda.
 8                MS. DE BLASI: Neither does Banner.
 9                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  Okay.  So the
10  hearing is going to start on Tuesday, the 12th, at
11  10:00 a.m.  And we have it booked through the 20th, the
12  following week.
13                MR. DERSTINE: That's correct.
14                CHMN STAFFORD: Hopefully it won't go that
15  long, but we are prepared.
16                All right.  What -- what is the estimated
17  time for the applicant to put on its direct case, do you
18  think?
19                MR. DERSTINE: That's a good question.
20  Starting at 10:00 a.m. on Tuesday, I would expect that it
21  would take -- we'll be done with our direct case
22  Wednesday afternoon or early on Thursday.
23                CHMN STAFFORD: On Thursday?  Wednesday
24  afternoon, Thursday morning?
25                MR. DERSTINE: Correct.
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 1                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  My internet
 2  connection is unstable now.  I'm not getting --
 3                MR. DERSTINE: Correct.  That's my best
 4  estimate at this -- yeah.
 5                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.
 6                MR. DERSTINE: I hear you okay.
 7                CHMN STAFFORD: Yeah, I can hear you now.
 8  For a split second there it was kind of slurring what you
 9  were saying.  It had that little bit of --
10                MR. DERSTINE: Right.
11                CHMN STAFFORD: -- delay.
12                Okay.  So then the hearing we're going --
13  it's going to be held at the Vee Quiva Resort & Casino.
14  You have the accurate AV setup for the members to attend
15  remotely?
16                MR. DERSTINE: Yes.  So SRP is using their
17  in-house AV team.  And I'm told that they are well
18  equipped and staffed to handle all the necessary
19  audiovisual requirements for the virtual hearing, for
20  members to appear virtually, as well as the public to
21  appear virtually.  And we'll get you those links if we
22  haven't -- we'll get Tod those links if we haven't done
23  so already.
24                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  Excellent.
25                And you'll have sign-in forms for the
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 1  public comment with the -- with the option to check the
 2  box to whether they wish to speak or not, correct?
 3                MR. DERSTINE: Yes.
 4                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  The public comment
 5  we'll hold at 5:30 on the Tuesday evening.
 6                Has the applicant prepared for a tour?
 7                MR. DERSTINE: Yes.  I think we've
 8  submitted two prefiling exhibits.  The first one, the
 9  route tour, which is Prehearing Exhibit Number 1, and
10  then our Prehearing Exhibit Number 2 was the outreach
11  summary that you have requested.  But our route tour has
12  been submitted and we tried to follow your, as best we
13  could, the recommendation from the TEP case to include a
14  script for the route tour.  It's -- the route tour has a
15  number of stops along either side of the 202 to try to
16  give the committee a perspective and understanding of the
17  various -- the preferred routes, as well as the various
18  route alternatives.
19                And so we have a fairly detailed, and I
20  would assume, fairly lengthy route tour planned, if
21  the -- and I assume the committee will want to take that
22  tour.
23                CHMN STAFFORD: Yes.
24                Robin, do you have the prehearing exhibits?
25                THE REPORTER: I do.
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 1                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  Those are
 2  admitted.
 3                (Prehearing Exhibits 1 and 2 were admitted
 4            into evidence.)
 5                CHMN STAFFORD: The attire for the hearing
 6  will be business casual.
 7                Now, the applicants filed their testimony
 8  summaries, looks like you have a panel of four, and then
 9  a potential second panel of three or four?
10                MR. DERSTINE: That's correct.  We have our
11  case-in-chief panel, and then, if needed, a rebuttal --
12  essentially a rebuttal panel that we have reserved the
13  right to call on to deal with any potential claims or
14  concerns over EMF.  That panel is really focused on EMF
15  issues should we need to address them.
16                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  And, Ms. De Blasi,
17  you have also filed your witness summary.  I believe you
18  have one witness and you have also filed the exhibit, his
19  presentation, correct?
20                MS. DE BLASI: Correct.
21                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  Are there any
22  other issues regarding evidence and exhibits to be
23  addressed?
24                MS. DE BLASI: (Inaudible.)
25                CHMN STAFFORD: Yes.
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 1                THE REPORTER: I'm sorry, I can't hear her.
 2                CHMN STAFFORD: Can you speak up,
 3  Ms. De Blasi, the court reporter can't hear you.
 4                MS. DE BLASI: Yes, I think your video was
 5  cutting out as well.  Yes, we filed our -- our -- we have
 6  one witness and we filed our exhibit, which will be the
 7  witness presentation.
 8                CHMN STAFFORD: All right.  Excellent.
 9                Are there any other issues or legal matters
10  that need resolution before the hearing?
11                MR. DERSTINE: No, not that I'm aware of.
12  Not on behalf of SRP.
13                CHMN STAFFORD: Ms. De Blasi?
14                MS. DE BLASI: No.
15                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  Now, the applicants
16  have made the financial arrangements with the Commission?
17                MR. DERSTINE: Yes.
18                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  And it looks like
19  Staff filed their letter in response to mine today, so we
20  have that.
21                The applicants will provide a proposed CEC.
22  Did -- is Banner planning on filing a draft CEC or not?
23  You're not required, I'm just asking.
24                MS. DE BLASI: Correct.  We -- Chairman, we
25  support the CEC, as filed by the applicant, at least as
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 1  it passes the Banner property, so we don't plan to file
 2  an additional form of CEC.
 3                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  All right.  Thank
 4  you.
 5                Permit statuses, what's the -- what are the
 6  permit statuses of the -- for the project?
 7                MR. DERSTINE: There's no federal or NEPA
 8  permitting.  There may be some, I guess, minor permits
 9  potentially, I guess, related to some of these Bureau of
10  Reclamation, you know, holdings of land and canals or
11  ditches.  But that's still being evaluated, but no major
12  permits are outstanding.
13                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  So the transmission
14  lines are a permitted use under the current zoning,
15  correct?
16                MR. DERSTINE: Yes.
17                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  All right.
18                Now, for --
19                MS. GILBERT: May I add to that, just to
20  supplement that, that the roads that are within ADOT
21  right-of-way potentially could require some potential
22  permits, and that's still being evaluated too.
23                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.
24                MR. DERSTINE: Yeah, and I guess -- I
25  appreciate Ms. Gilbert raising that.  So the -- you'll
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 1  note that there are a number -- there's preferred routes
 2  and then there are some conditional routes that are
 3  presented in the application.  Those are directed to and
 4  intended to cover situations in which we may not be able
 5  to secure right-of-way from ADOT.
 6                And so we'll cover that in our case in
 7  chief.  Mr. -- yeah, Mr. Hernandez, when he describes the
 8  project and our routes will go through the where we stand
 9  with Arizona Department of Transportation and the
10  potential to use the -- some irrigation basins that sit
11  on the side, on the eastern side of the Loop 202.  So --
12                CHMN STAFFORD: Because it looks to me like
13  you have, like, four possibilities from point A to point
14  B, and five possibilities from point B to point C.
15                MR. DERSTINE: That sounds right in number,
16  in terms of our northern route grouping and our southern
17  route grouping.
18                CHMN STAFFORD: Right.  Okay.  So I guess,
19  depending on which route ultimately is approved, will
20  impact whether you need to deal with ADOT or the Bureau
21  of Reclamation.
22                MR. DERSTINE: Probably not the Bureau of
23  Reclamation issues.  But in terms of routing and final
24  route selection, the -- yeah, the ADOT right-of-way
25  issues are the most important.
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 1                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  Now, for the
 2  exhibits for the members at the hearing, will you be
 3  providing tablets with the exhibits on them and will
 4  you -- or will you be providing notebooks for them?
 5                MR. DERSTINE: I think SRP uses and will
 6  provide Surface laptop computers, so the laptop computer
 7  that will carry all the various exhibits for SRP's
 8  exhibits, as well as we'll be happy to include Banner's
 9  exhibits, and any other exhibits that need to be reviewed
10  by the committee members.
11                CHMN STAFFORD: Excellent.  You just
12  answered my question before I could ask it.  Thank you.
13                And then so we'll -- but we'll need two
14  hard copies of the exhibits, one for me and one for the
15  court reporter.  Other than that, you can do it
16  electronically for the members.
17                MR. DERSTINE: Okay.
18                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  The only -- I think
19  that's everything on my end.  The only thing I want to
20  reiterate is that to get those virtual links to Tod
21  today.  That would be -- you need to get them ASAP.
22                MR. DERSTINE: Okay.  We'll do it.
23                CHMN STAFFORD: Excellent.
24                Anything else we need, Tod?  I think that's
25  everything that I have.
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 1                MR. BREWER: No (inaudible) -- got it all,
 2  thank you.
 3                THE REPORTER: I'm sorry?
 4                CHMN STAFFORD: Yeah, he's cutting out.  He
 5  said nothing else.
 6                MR. DERSTINE: Alysha, any other issues?
 7                THE REPORTER: I'm sorry?
 8                MS. GILBERT: No (inaudible) -- but I'm not
 9  sure.
10                THE REPORTER: I couldn't understand that.
11                CHMN STAFFORD: I heard no, I'm not sure.
12  But I don't think they have anything else to cover.
13  We're starting to get the glitchiness on the internet
14  here.
15                MR. DERSTINE: Yeah, I can hear you better
16  through the wall than I can over the internet.
17                CHMN STAFFORD: Yeah, now that Peaks has
18  disassembled its stuff, we're just relying on what the
19  Ranch has here, so --
20                Do you need anything else, Robin?
21                THE REPORTER: No.
22                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  All right.  What
23  about you, Ms. De Blasi, anything else we need to cover?
24                MS. DE BLASI: Nothing from me.  Thank you.
25                CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.  Excellent.
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 1                All right.  Thank you all very much.  We
 2  will see you on Tuesday, the 12th.
 3                MR. DERSTINE: Thank you.
 4                MS. DE BLASI: Thank you.
 5                CHMN STAFFORD: Thank you.
 6                We are adjourned.
 7                (The hearing concluded at 2:18 p.m.)
 8 
 9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
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 1  STATE OF ARIZONA    )
    COUNTY OF MARICOPA  )
 2 
   
 3 
              BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings were
 4  taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,
    true, and accurate record of the proceedings all done to
 5  the best of my skill and ability; that the proceedings
    were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter reduced
 6  to print under my direction.
   
 7            I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any of
    the parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the
 8  outcome hereof.
   
 9            I CERTIFY that I have complied with the ethical
    obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and ACJA 7-206
10  (J)(1)(g)(1) and (2).  Dated at Phoenix, Arizona, this
    1st day of November, 2024.
11 
   
12 
   
13 
   
14                    ___________________________
                      ROBIN L. B. OSTERODE, RPR
15                    CA CSR No. 7750
                      AZ CR No. 50695
16 
   
17                      *   *   *   *   *
   
18            I CERTIFY that Glennie Reporting Services, LLC,
    has complied with the ethical obligations set forth in
19  ACJA 7-206(J)(1)(g)(1) through (6).
   
20 
   
21 
   
22 
   
23 
             _______________________________________
24               GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC
                 Registered Reporting Firm
25               Arizona RRF No. R1035
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 1            BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and
  


 2   numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the
  


 3   Arizona Corporation Commission, 1200 West Washington
  


 4   Street, Phoenix, Arizona, commencing at 2:00 p.m. on
  


 5   October 30, 2024.  All parties attended via
  


 6   teleconference.
  


 7
  


 8   BEFORE:   Adam Stafford, Chairman
  


 9
  


10   APPEARANCES:
  


11   For the Applicant:
  


12        Matthew Derstine, Esq.
        SNELL & WILMER


13        One Arizona Center
        400 East Van Buren Street, Suite 1900


14        Phoenix, Arizona 85004
  


15        Alysha Y. Gilbert, Esq.
        SALT RIVER PROJECT AGRICULTURAL IMPROVEMENT


16        AND POWER DISTRICT
        P.O. Box 52025, PAB381


17        Phoenix, Arizona 85072-2025
  


18   For the Intervenor Banner Health:
  


19        Michelle De Blasi, Esq.
        LAW OFFICE OF MICHELLE DE BLASI


20        7702 East Doubletree Ranch Rd, Ste 300
        Scottsdale, AZ 85258


21
   Also Present:


22
        Gourjia Odisho, Paralegal


23        Michele Maser, Senior Legal Analyst
        Rick Hernandez - Project Manager, SRP


24        Zack Heim - Senior Director Power Delivery, SRP
        Kenda Pollio - principal with kp environmental
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 1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Let's go on the record.
  


 2                 Now's the time set for the prehearing
  


 3   conference in the application of Salt River Project for a
  


 4   Certificate of Environmental Compatibility, Docket Number
  


 5   L-00000B-24-0223-00239 or Line Siting Case 239.
  


 6                 Let's start with appearances, Mr. Derstine.
  


 7                 MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you, Chairman, good
  


 8   afternoon.  Matt Derstine, appearing on behalf of Salt
  


 9   River Project.  Also appearing is Alysha Gilbert,
  


10   in-house counsel for Salt River.  I think we have, you
  


11   know, Ms. Gourjia Odisho, my paralegal with Snell &
  


12   Wilmer with me here appearing, and we have Michele Maser,
  


13   who is senior legal analyst for SRP.  And then to round
  


14   out the SRP team, we have Rick Hernandez, who is the
  


15   project manager for the South Mountain Transmission
  


16   Project, Zack Heim, who is the senior director of power
  


17   delivery for SRP.  And Kenda Pollio is the principal with
  


18   kp environmental, the environmental consulting firm
  


19   supporting the project and the application.
  


20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And Ms. De Blasi.
  


21                 MS. DE BLASI:  Good afternoon, Chairman,
  


22   and everyone.  Michelle De Blasi, appearing on behalf of
  


23   Banner Health.
  


24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And you're not expecting
  


25   anyone else to join you?
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 1                 MS. DE BLASI:  It's just me.
  


 2                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  All right.
  


 3                 Mr. Derstine, I just want to confirm that
  


 4   the applicant has the lodging ready for the out-of-town
  


 5   members at the venue.  I think you're going to want to
  


 6   have them check in on Monday, because we're starting
  


 7   Tuesday at 10:00 a.m.
  


 8                 MR. DERSTINE:  Yes, I think we have made
  


 9   the arrangements.  I guess I'll double-check with
  


10   Ms. Maser in terms of if we have any current information
  


11   on the number of committee members who have made the
  


12   reservations or maybe Tod has that information, but
  


13   certainly a Monday check-in is -- we're ready and
  


14   available for that.
  


15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Excellent.  Oh, yes.
  


16   And if you can get the virtual links for the hearing if
  


17   you get those to Tod today that will be excellent.
  


18                 MR. DERSTINE:  All right.  Will do.
  


19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Looks like Banner
  


20   Health will be a party by right under the Statute
  


21   40-360.05(A)(3).  No one's disputing that, correct,
  


22   Mr. Derstine?
  


23                 MR. DERSTINE:  Correct.
  


24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Do all the parties
  


25   agree that the time of the committee to act under the


      GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC      602.266.6535
      www.glennie-reporting.com             Phoenix, AZ







LS CASE NO. 239    PREHEARING CONFERENCE   10/30/2024 6


  


 1   statute is March 25th, 2025?
  


 2                 MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.
  


 3                 MS. DE BLASI:  Yes.
  


 4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And, Mr. Derstine,
  


 5   the applicant has complied with the notice to affected
  


 6   jurisdictions, correct?
  


 7                 MR. DERSTINE:  We have.
  


 8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And those are Phoenix,
  


 9   Maricopa County, and Arizona Department of
  


10   Transportation?
  


11                 MR. DERSTINE:  It is Phoenix, Maricopa
  


12   County, it also includes Arizona Department of
  


13   Transportation, the jurisdictions you mentioned.  In
  


14   addition, there is Gila River Indian Community, which
  


15   they're -- the land starts right next to the 500-kV
  


16   corridor, which is at the southern or the -- yeah, the
  


17   southern end of the project.  We're not crossing any of
  


18   the Indian community land, but based on their proximity
  


19   to the project, and then they're -- the Bureau of
  


20   Reclamation, by virtue of some irrigation ditches, which
  


21   I'm told is the state of art -- or the term of art for
  


22   these, as well as some small land holdings that are
  


23   within the project area, so they are also included in our
  


24   notice.
  


25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  All right.  And the
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 1   Notice of Hearing posting and publishing, the applicant's
  


 2   complied with that as well?  What was the -- remind me,
  


 3   how many signs were put up?
  


 4                 MR. DERSTINE:  You're asking about
  


 5   publication or signs?
  


 6                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Posting first the signs.
  


 7                 MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.  We should have a --
  


 8   we had a little map of our --
  


 9                 CHMN STAFFORD:  I think you provided one at
  


10   the prehearing -- prefiling conference.
  


11                 MR. DERSTINE:  We did at the prefiling
  


12   conference.  I don't know if anyone has that available to
  


13   pull up.  I don't remember.  We have a large number of --
  


14                 MS. POLLIO:  There are 13 signs.  13.
  


15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  13, okay.
  


16                 MR. DERSTINE:  And those, Ms. Pollio, also
  


17   posted those at the locations of the map that we filed at
  


18   the prefiling conference.
  


19                 MS. POLLIO:  That is correct.
  


20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And what were the
  


21   publication dates?  And I'm assuming it was the Arizona
  


22   Republic?
  


23                 MR. DERSTINE:  Arizona Republic, October 1
  


24   and October the 8th.  And the Arizona Business Gazette,
  


25   October the 3rd and October the 10th.  And then a Spanish
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 1   language publication, Prensa Arizona, October the 3rd,
  


 2   October the 10th.
  


 3                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Has -- have the
  


 4   parties reviewed the agenda?  Do they have any objections
  


 5   or additions?
  


 6                 MR. DERSTINE:  SRP has no objections to the
  


 7   agenda.
  


 8                 MS. DE BLASI:  Neither does Banner.
  


 9                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Okay.  So the
  


10   hearing is going to start on Tuesday, the 12th, at
  


11   10:00 a.m.  And we have it booked through the 20th, the
  


12   following week.
  


13                 MR. DERSTINE:  That's correct.
  


14                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Hopefully it won't go that
  


15   long, but we are prepared.
  


16                 All right.  What -- what is the estimated
  


17   time for the applicant to put on its direct case, do you
  


18   think?
  


19                 MR. DERSTINE:  That's a good question.
  


20   Starting at 10:00 a.m. on Tuesday, I would expect that it
  


21   would take -- we'll be done with our direct case
  


22   Wednesday afternoon or early on Thursday.
  


23                 CHMN STAFFORD:  On Thursday?  Wednesday
  


24   afternoon, Thursday morning?
  


25                 MR. DERSTINE:  Correct.
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 1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  My internet
  


 2   connection is unstable now.  I'm not getting --
  


 3                 MR. DERSTINE:  Correct.  That's my best
  


 4   estimate at this -- yeah.
  


 5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.
  


 6                 MR. DERSTINE:  I hear you okay.
  


 7                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Yeah, I can hear you now.
  


 8   For a split second there it was kind of slurring what you
  


 9   were saying.  It had that little bit of --
  


10                 MR. DERSTINE:  Right.
  


11                 CHMN STAFFORD:  -- delay.
  


12                 Okay.  So then the hearing we're going --
  


13   it's going to be held at the Vee Quiva Resort & Casino.
  


14   You have the accurate AV setup for the members to attend
  


15   remotely?
  


16                 MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.  So SRP is using their
  


17   in-house AV team.  And I'm told that they are well
  


18   equipped and staffed to handle all the necessary
  


19   audiovisual requirements for the virtual hearing, for
  


20   members to appear virtually, as well as the public to
  


21   appear virtually.  And we'll get you those links if we
  


22   haven't -- we'll get Tod those links if we haven't done
  


23   so already.
  


24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Excellent.
  


25                 And you'll have sign-in forms for the
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 1   public comment with the -- with the option to check the
  


 2   box to whether they wish to speak or not, correct?
  


 3                 MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.
  


 4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  The public comment
  


 5   we'll hold at 5:30 on the Tuesday evening.
  


 6                 Has the applicant prepared for a tour?
  


 7                 MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.  I think we've
  


 8   submitted two prefiling exhibits.  The first one, the
  


 9   route tour, which is Prehearing Exhibit Number 1, and
  


10   then our Prehearing Exhibit Number 2 was the outreach
  


11   summary that you have requested.  But our route tour has
  


12   been submitted and we tried to follow your, as best we
  


13   could, the recommendation from the TEP case to include a
  


14   script for the route tour.  It's -- the route tour has a
  


15   number of stops along either side of the 202 to try to
  


16   give the committee a perspective and understanding of the
  


17   various -- the preferred routes, as well as the various
  


18   route alternatives.
  


19                 And so we have a fairly detailed, and I
  


20   would assume, fairly lengthy route tour planned, if
  


21   the -- and I assume the committee will want to take that
  


22   tour.
  


23                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Yes.
  


24                 Robin, do you have the prehearing exhibits?
  


25                 THE REPORTER:  I do.
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 1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Those are
  


 2   admitted.
  


 3                 (Prehearing Exhibits 1 and 2 were admitted
  


 4             into evidence.)
  


 5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  The attire for the hearing
  


 6   will be business casual.
  


 7                 Now, the applicants filed their testimony
  


 8   summaries, looks like you have a panel of four, and then
  


 9   a potential second panel of three or four?
  


10                 MR. DERSTINE:  That's correct.  We have our
  


11   case-in-chief panel, and then, if needed, a rebuttal --
  


12   essentially a rebuttal panel that we have reserved the
  


13   right to call on to deal with any potential claims or
  


14   concerns over EMF.  That panel is really focused on EMF
  


15   issues should we need to address them.
  


16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And, Ms. De Blasi,
  


17   you have also filed your witness summary.  I believe you
  


18   have one witness and you have also filed the exhibit, his
  


19   presentation, correct?
  


20                 MS. DE BLASI:  Correct.
  


21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Are there any
  


22   other issues regarding evidence and exhibits to be
  


23   addressed?
  


24                 MS. DE BLASI:  (Inaudible.)
  


25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Yes.
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 1                 THE REPORTER:  I'm sorry, I can't hear her.
  


 2                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Can you speak up,
  


 3   Ms. De Blasi, the court reporter can't hear you.
  


 4                 MS. DE BLASI:  Yes, I think your video was
  


 5   cutting out as well.  Yes, we filed our -- our -- we have
  


 6   one witness and we filed our exhibit, which will be the
  


 7   witness presentation.
  


 8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Excellent.
  


 9                 Are there any other issues or legal matters
  


10   that need resolution before the hearing?
  


11                 MR. DERSTINE:  No, not that I'm aware of.
  


12   Not on behalf of SRP.
  


13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Ms. De Blasi?
  


14                 MS. DE BLASI:  No.
  


15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Now, the applicants
  


16   have made the financial arrangements with the Commission?
  


17                 MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.
  


18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And it looks like
  


19   Staff filed their letter in response to mine today, so we
  


20   have that.
  


21                 The applicants will provide a proposed CEC.
  


22   Did -- is Banner planning on filing a draft CEC or not?
  


23   You're not required, I'm just asking.
  


24                 MS. DE BLASI:  Correct.  We -- Chairman, we
  


25   support the CEC, as filed by the applicant, at least as
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 1   it passes the Banner property, so we don't plan to file
  


 2   an additional form of CEC.
  


 3                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  All right.  Thank
  


 4   you.
  


 5                 Permit statuses, what's the -- what are the
  


 6   permit statuses of the -- for the project?
  


 7                 MR. DERSTINE:  There's no federal or NEPA
  


 8   permitting.  There may be some, I guess, minor permits
  


 9   potentially, I guess, related to some of these Bureau of
  


10   Reclamation, you know, holdings of land and canals or
  


11   ditches.  But that's still being evaluated, but no major
  


12   permits are outstanding.
  


13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  So the transmission
  


14   lines are a permitted use under the current zoning,
  


15   correct?
  


16                 MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.
  


17                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  All right.
  


18                 Now, for --
  


19                 MS. GILBERT:  May I add to that, just to
  


20   supplement that, that the roads that are within ADOT
  


21   right-of-way potentially could require some potential
  


22   permits, and that's still being evaluated too.
  


23                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.
  


24                 MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah, and I guess -- I
  


25   appreciate Ms. Gilbert raising that.  So the -- you'll
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 1   note that there are a number -- there's preferred routes
  


 2   and then there are some conditional routes that are
  


 3   presented in the application.  Those are directed to and
  


 4   intended to cover situations in which we may not be able
  


 5   to secure right-of-way from ADOT.
  


 6                 And so we'll cover that in our case in
  


 7   chief.  Mr. -- yeah, Mr. Hernandez, when he describes the
  


 8   project and our routes will go through the where we stand
  


 9   with Arizona Department of Transportation and the
  


10   potential to use the -- some irrigation basins that sit
  


11   on the side, on the eastern side of the Loop 202.  So --
  


12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Because it looks to me like
  


13   you have, like, four possibilities from point A to point
  


14   B, and five possibilities from point B to point C.
  


15                 MR. DERSTINE:  That sounds right in number,
  


16   in terms of our northern route grouping and our southern
  


17   route grouping.
  


18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Right.  Okay.  So I guess,
  


19   depending on which route ultimately is approved, will
  


20   impact whether you need to deal with ADOT or the Bureau
  


21   of Reclamation.
  


22                 MR. DERSTINE:  Probably not the Bureau of
  


23   Reclamation issues.  But in terms of routing and final
  


24   route selection, the -- yeah, the ADOT right-of-way
  


25   issues are the most important.
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 1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Now, for the
  


 2   exhibits for the members at the hearing, will you be
  


 3   providing tablets with the exhibits on them and will
  


 4   you -- or will you be providing notebooks for them?
  


 5                 MR. DERSTINE:  I think SRP uses and will
  


 6   provide Surface laptop computers, so the laptop computer
  


 7   that will carry all the various exhibits for SRP's
  


 8   exhibits, as well as we'll be happy to include Banner's
  


 9   exhibits, and any other exhibits that need to be reviewed
  


10   by the committee members.
  


11                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Excellent.  You just
  


12   answered my question before I could ask it.  Thank you.
  


13                 And then so we'll -- but we'll need two
  


14   hard copies of the exhibits, one for me and one for the
  


15   court reporter.  Other than that, you can do it
  


16   electronically for the members.
  


17                 MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.
  


18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  The only -- I think
  


19   that's everything on my end.  The only thing I want to
  


20   reiterate is that to get those virtual links to Tod
  


21   today.  That would be -- you need to get them ASAP.
  


22                 MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.  We'll do it.
  


23                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Excellent.
  


24                 Anything else we need, Tod?  I think that's
  


25   everything that I have.
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 1                 MR. BREWER:  No (inaudible) -- got it all,
  


 2   thank you.
  


 3                 THE REPORTER:  I'm sorry?
  


 4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Yeah, he's cutting out.  He
  


 5   said nothing else.
  


 6                 MR. DERSTINE:  Alysha, any other issues?
  


 7                 THE REPORTER:  I'm sorry?
  


 8                 MS. GILBERT:  No (inaudible) -- but I'm not
  


 9   sure.
  


10                 THE REPORTER:  I couldn't understand that.
  


11                 CHMN STAFFORD:  I heard no, I'm not sure.
  


12   But I don't think they have anything else to cover.
  


13   We're starting to get the glitchiness on the internet
  


14   here.
  


15                 MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah, I can hear you better
  


16   through the wall than I can over the internet.
  


17                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Yeah, now that Peaks has
  


18   disassembled its stuff, we're just relying on what the
  


19   Ranch has here, so --
  


20                 Do you need anything else, Robin?
  


21                 THE REPORTER:  No.
  


22                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  All right.  What
  


23   about you, Ms. De Blasi, anything else we need to cover?
  


24                 MS. DE BLASI:  Nothing from me.  Thank you.
  


25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Excellent.
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 1                 All right.  Thank you all very much.  We
  


 2   will see you on Tuesday, the 12th.
  


 3                 MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you.
  


 4                 MS. DE BLASI:  Thank you.
  


 5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Thank you.
  


 6                 We are adjourned.
  


 7                 (The hearing concluded at 2:18 p.m.)
  


 8
  


 9
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 1   STATE OF ARIZONA    )
   COUNTY OF MARICOPA  )


 2
  


 3
             BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings were


 4   taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,
   true, and accurate record of the proceedings all done to


 5   the best of my skill and ability; that the proceedings
   were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter reduced


 6   to print under my direction.
  


 7             I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any of
   the parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the


 8   outcome hereof.
  


 9             I CERTIFY that I have complied with the ethical
   obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and ACJA 7-206


10   (J)(1)(g)(1) and (2).  Dated at Phoenix, Arizona, this
   1st day of November, 2024.


11
  


12
  


13
  


14                     ___________________________
                     ROBIN L. B. OSTERODE, RPR


15                     CA CSR No. 7750
                     AZ CR No. 50695


16
  


17                       *   *   *   *   *
  


18             I CERTIFY that Glennie Reporting Services, LLC,
   has complied with the ethical obligations set forth in


19   ACJA 7-206(J)(1)(g)(1) through (6).
  


20
  


21
  


22
  


23
            _______________________________________


24                GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC
                Registered Reporting Firm


25                Arizona RRF No. R1035
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           1   BEFORE THE ARIZONA POWER PLANT               LS-389



           2   AND TRANSMISSION LINE SITING COMMITTEE



           3   IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF  ) DOCKET NO.

               SALT RIVER PROJECT AGRICULTURAL      ) L-00000B-24-0223-

           4   IMPROVEMENT AND POWER DISTRICT, IN   ) 00239

               CONFORMANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS    )

           5   OF ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES SECTION  )

               40-360, ET SEQ., FOR A CERTIFICATE   )

           6   OF ENVIRONMENTAL COMPATIBILITY       )

               AUTHORIZING THE SOUTH MOUNTAIN       )

           7   TRANSMISSION PROJECT, WHICH          )

               INCLUDES THE CONSTRUCTION OF TWO     )

           8   NEW 230 KV DOUBLE-CIRCUIT            )

               TRANSMISSION LINES THAT WILL         )

           9   INTERCONNECT THE EXISTING            )

               DOUBLE-CIRCUIT ANDERSON-ORME         )
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          11   CITY OF PHOENIX, MARICOPA COUNTY,    ) PREHEARING
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           1            BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and



           2   numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the



           3   Arizona Corporation Commission, 1200 West Washington



           4   Street, Phoenix, Arizona, commencing at 2:00 p.m. on



           5   October 30, 2024.  All parties attended via



           6   teleconference.



           7



           8   BEFORE:   Adam Stafford, Chairman



           9



          10   APPEARANCES:



          11   For the Applicant:



          12        Matthew Derstine, Esq.

                    SNELL & WILMER

          13        One Arizona Center

                    400 East Van Buren Street, Suite 1900

          14        Phoenix, Arizona 85004



          15        Alysha Y. Gilbert, Esq.

                    SALT RIVER PROJECT AGRICULTURAL IMPROVEMENT

          16        AND POWER DISTRICT

                    P.O. Box 52025, PAB381

          17        Phoenix, Arizona 85072-2025



          18   For the Intervenor Banner Health:



          19        Michelle De Blasi, Esq.

                    LAW OFFICE OF MICHELLE DE BLASI

          20        7702 East Doubletree Ranch Rd, Ste 300

                    Scottsdale, AZ 85258

          21

               Also Present:

          22

                    Gourjia Odisho, Paralegal

          23        Michele Maser, Senior Legal Analyst

                    Rick Hernandez - Project Manager, SRP

          24        Zack Heim - Senior Director Power Delivery, SRP

                    Kenda Pollio - principal with kp environmental

          25
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           1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Let's go on the record.



           2                 Now's the time set for the prehearing



           3   conference in the application of Salt River Project for a



           4   Certificate of Environmental Compatibility, Docket Number



           5   L-00000B-24-0223-00239 or Line Siting Case 239.



           6                 Let's start with appearances, Mr. Derstine.



           7                 MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you, Chairman, good



           8   afternoon.  Matt Derstine, appearing on behalf of Salt



           9   River Project.  Also appearing is Alysha Gilbert,



          10   in-house counsel for Salt River.  I think we have, you



          11   know, Ms. Gourjia Odisho, my paralegal with Snell &



          12   Wilmer with me here appearing, and we have Michele Maser,



          13   who is senior legal analyst for SRP.  And then to round



          14   out the SRP team, we have Rick Hernandez, who is the



          15   project manager for the South Mountain Transmission



          16   Project, Zack Heim, who is the senior director of power



          17   delivery for SRP.  And Kenda Pollio is the principal with



          18   kp environmental, the environmental consulting firm



          19   supporting the project and the application.



          20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And Ms. De Blasi.



          21                 MS. DE BLASI:  Good afternoon, Chairman,



          22   and everyone.  Michelle De Blasi, appearing on behalf of



          23   Banner Health.



          24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And you're not expecting



          25   anyone else to join you?
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           1                 MS. DE BLASI:  It's just me.



           2                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  All right.



           3                 Mr. Derstine, I just want to confirm that



           4   the applicant has the lodging ready for the out-of-town



           5   members at the venue.  I think you're going to want to



           6   have them check in on Monday, because we're starting



           7   Tuesday at 10:00 a.m.



           8                 MR. DERSTINE:  Yes, I think we have made



           9   the arrangements.  I guess I'll double-check with



          10   Ms. Maser in terms of if we have any current information



          11   on the number of committee members who have made the



          12   reservations or maybe Tod has that information, but



          13   certainly a Monday check-in is -- we're ready and



          14   available for that.



          15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Excellent.  Oh, yes.



          16   And if you can get the virtual links for the hearing if



          17   you get those to Tod today that will be excellent.



          18                 MR. DERSTINE:  All right.  Will do.



          19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Looks like Banner



          20   Health will be a party by right under the Statute



          21   40-360.05(A)(3).  No one's disputing that, correct,



          22   Mr. Derstine?



          23                 MR. DERSTINE:  Correct.



          24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Do all the parties



          25   agree that the time of the committee to act under the





                  GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC      602.266.6535



                  www.glennie-reporting.com             Phoenix, AZ

�



                    LS CASE NO. 239    PREHEARING CONFERENCE   10/30/2024

                                                                      6





           1   statute is March 25th, 2025?



           2                 MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.



           3                 MS. DE BLASI:  Yes.



           4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And, Mr. Derstine,



           5   the applicant has complied with the notice to affected



           6   jurisdictions, correct?



           7                 MR. DERSTINE:  We have.



           8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And those are Phoenix,



           9   Maricopa County, and Arizona Department of



          10   Transportation?



          11                 MR. DERSTINE:  It is Phoenix, Maricopa



          12   County, it also includes Arizona Department of



          13   Transportation, the jurisdictions you mentioned.  In



          14   addition, there is Gila River Indian Community, which



          15   they're -- the land starts right next to the 500-kV



          16   corridor, which is at the southern or the -- yeah, the



          17   southern end of the project.  We're not crossing any of



          18   the Indian community land, but based on their proximity



          19   to the project, and then they're -- the Bureau of



          20   Reclamation, by virtue of some irrigation ditches, which



          21   I'm told is the state of art -- or the term of art for



          22   these, as well as some small land holdings that are



          23   within the project area, so they are also included in our



          24   notice.



          25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  All right.  And the
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           1   Notice of Hearing posting and publishing, the applicant's



           2   complied with that as well?  What was the -- remind me,



           3   how many signs were put up?



           4                 MR. DERSTINE:  You're asking about



           5   publication or signs?



           6                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Posting first the signs.



           7                 MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.  We should have a --



           8   we had a little map of our --



           9                 CHMN STAFFORD:  I think you provided one at



          10   the prehearing -- prefiling conference.



          11                 MR. DERSTINE:  We did at the prefiling



          12   conference.  I don't know if anyone has that available to



          13   pull up.  I don't remember.  We have a large number of --



          14                 MS. POLLIO:  There are 13 signs.  13.



          15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  13, okay.



          16                 MR. DERSTINE:  And those, Ms. Pollio, also



          17   posted those at the locations of the map that we filed at



          18   the prefiling conference.



          19                 MS. POLLIO:  That is correct.



          20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And what were the



          21   publication dates?  And I'm assuming it was the Arizona



          22   Republic?



          23                 MR. DERSTINE:  Arizona Republic, October 1



          24   and October the 8th.  And the Arizona Business Gazette,



          25   October the 3rd and October the 10th.  And then a Spanish
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           1   language publication, Prensa Arizona, October the 3rd,



           2   October the 10th.



           3                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Has -- have the



           4   parties reviewed the agenda?  Do they have any objections



           5   or additions?



           6                 MR. DERSTINE:  SRP has no objections to the



           7   agenda.



           8                 MS. DE BLASI:  Neither does Banner.



           9                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Okay.  So the



          10   hearing is going to start on Tuesday, the 12th, at



          11   10:00 a.m.  And we have it booked through the 20th, the



          12   following week.



          13                 MR. DERSTINE:  That's correct.



          14                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Hopefully it won't go that



          15   long, but we are prepared.



          16                 All right.  What -- what is the estimated



          17   time for the applicant to put on its direct case, do you



          18   think?



          19                 MR. DERSTINE:  That's a good question.



          20   Starting at 10:00 a.m. on Tuesday, I would expect that it



          21   would take -- we'll be done with our direct case



          22   Wednesday afternoon or early on Thursday.



          23                 CHMN STAFFORD:  On Thursday?  Wednesday



          24   afternoon, Thursday morning?



          25                 MR. DERSTINE:  Correct.
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           1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  My internet



           2   connection is unstable now.  I'm not getting --



           3                 MR. DERSTINE:  Correct.  That's my best



           4   estimate at this -- yeah.



           5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.



           6                 MR. DERSTINE:  I hear you okay.



           7                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Yeah, I can hear you now.



           8   For a split second there it was kind of slurring what you



           9   were saying.  It had that little bit of --



          10                 MR. DERSTINE:  Right.



          11                 CHMN STAFFORD:  -- delay.



          12                 Okay.  So then the hearing we're going --



          13   it's going to be held at the Vee Quiva Resort & Casino.



          14   You have the accurate AV setup for the members to attend



          15   remotely?



          16                 MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.  So SRP is using their



          17   in-house AV team.  And I'm told that they are well



          18   equipped and staffed to handle all the necessary



          19   audiovisual requirements for the virtual hearing, for



          20   members to appear virtually, as well as the public to



          21   appear virtually.  And we'll get you those links if we



          22   haven't -- we'll get Tod those links if we haven't done



          23   so already.



          24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Excellent.



          25                 And you'll have sign-in forms for the
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           1   public comment with the -- with the option to check the



           2   box to whether they wish to speak or not, correct?



           3                 MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.



           4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  The public comment



           5   we'll hold at 5:30 on the Tuesday evening.



           6                 Has the applicant prepared for a tour?



           7                 MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.  I think we've



           8   submitted two prefiling exhibits.  The first one, the



           9   route tour, which is Prehearing Exhibit Number 1, and



          10   then our Prehearing Exhibit Number 2 was the outreach



          11   summary that you have requested.  But our route tour has



          12   been submitted and we tried to follow your, as best we



          13   could, the recommendation from the TEP case to include a



          14   script for the route tour.  It's -- the route tour has a



          15   number of stops along either side of the 202 to try to



          16   give the committee a perspective and understanding of the



          17   various -- the preferred routes, as well as the various



          18   route alternatives.



          19                 And so we have a fairly detailed, and I



          20   would assume, fairly lengthy route tour planned, if



          21   the -- and I assume the committee will want to take that



          22   tour.



          23                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Yes.



          24                 Robin, do you have the prehearing exhibits?



          25                 THE REPORTER:  I do.
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           1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Those are



           2   admitted.



           3                 (Prehearing Exhibits 1 and 2 were admitted



           4             into evidence.)



           5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  The attire for the hearing



           6   will be business casual.



           7                 Now, the applicants filed their testimony



           8   summaries, looks like you have a panel of four, and then



           9   a potential second panel of three or four?



          10                 MR. DERSTINE:  That's correct.  We have our



          11   case-in-chief panel, and then, if needed, a rebuttal --



          12   essentially a rebuttal panel that we have reserved the



          13   right to call on to deal with any potential claims or



          14   concerns over EMF.  That panel is really focused on EMF



          15   issues should we need to address them.



          16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And, Ms. De Blasi,



          17   you have also filed your witness summary.  I believe you



          18   have one witness and you have also filed the exhibit, his



          19   presentation, correct?



          20                 MS. DE BLASI:  Correct.



          21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Are there any



          22   other issues regarding evidence and exhibits to be



          23   addressed?



          24                 MS. DE BLASI:  (Inaudible.)



          25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Yes.
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           1                 THE REPORTER:  I'm sorry, I can't hear her.



           2                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Can you speak up,



           3   Ms. De Blasi, the court reporter can't hear you.



           4                 MS. DE BLASI:  Yes, I think your video was



           5   cutting out as well.  Yes, we filed our -- our -- we have



           6   one witness and we filed our exhibit, which will be the



           7   witness presentation.



           8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Excellent.



           9                 Are there any other issues or legal matters



          10   that need resolution before the hearing?



          11                 MR. DERSTINE:  No, not that I'm aware of.



          12   Not on behalf of SRP.



          13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Ms. De Blasi?



          14                 MS. DE BLASI:  No.



          15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Now, the applicants



          16   have made the financial arrangements with the Commission?



          17                 MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.



          18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And it looks like



          19   Staff filed their letter in response to mine today, so we



          20   have that.



          21                 The applicants will provide a proposed CEC.



          22   Did -- is Banner planning on filing a draft CEC or not?



          23   You're not required, I'm just asking.



          24                 MS. DE BLASI:  Correct.  We -- Chairman, we



          25   support the CEC, as filed by the applicant, at least as
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           1   it passes the Banner property, so we don't plan to file



           2   an additional form of CEC.



           3                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  All right.  Thank



           4   you.



           5                 Permit statuses, what's the -- what are the



           6   permit statuses of the -- for the project?



           7                 MR. DERSTINE:  There's no federal or NEPA



           8   permitting.  There may be some, I guess, minor permits



           9   potentially, I guess, related to some of these Bureau of



          10   Reclamation, you know, holdings of land and canals or



          11   ditches.  But that's still being evaluated, but no major



          12   permits are outstanding.



          13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  So the transmission



          14   lines are a permitted use under the current zoning,



          15   correct?



          16                 MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.



          17                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  All right.



          18                 Now, for --



          19                 MS. GILBERT:  May I add to that, just to



          20   supplement that, that the roads that are within ADOT



          21   right-of-way potentially could require some potential



          22   permits, and that's still being evaluated too.



          23                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.



          24                 MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah, and I guess -- I



          25   appreciate Ms. Gilbert raising that.  So the -- you'll
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           1   note that there are a number -- there's preferred routes



           2   and then there are some conditional routes that are



           3   presented in the application.  Those are directed to and



           4   intended to cover situations in which we may not be able



           5   to secure right-of-way from ADOT.



           6                 And so we'll cover that in our case in



           7   chief.  Mr. -- yeah, Mr. Hernandez, when he describes the



           8   project and our routes will go through the where we stand



           9   with Arizona Department of Transportation and the



          10   potential to use the -- some irrigation basins that sit



          11   on the side, on the eastern side of the Loop 202.  So --



          12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Because it looks to me like



          13   you have, like, four possibilities from point A to point



          14   B, and five possibilities from point B to point C.



          15                 MR. DERSTINE:  That sounds right in number,



          16   in terms of our northern route grouping and our southern



          17   route grouping.



          18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Right.  Okay.  So I guess,



          19   depending on which route ultimately is approved, will



          20   impact whether you need to deal with ADOT or the Bureau



          21   of Reclamation.



          22                 MR. DERSTINE:  Probably not the Bureau of



          23   Reclamation issues.  But in terms of routing and final



          24   route selection, the -- yeah, the ADOT right-of-way



          25   issues are the most important.
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           1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Now, for the



           2   exhibits for the members at the hearing, will you be



           3   providing tablets with the exhibits on them and will



           4   you -- or will you be providing notebooks for them?



           5                 MR. DERSTINE:  I think SRP uses and will



           6   provide Surface laptop computers, so the laptop computer



           7   that will carry all the various exhibits for SRP's



           8   exhibits, as well as we'll be happy to include Banner's



           9   exhibits, and any other exhibits that need to be reviewed



          10   by the committee members.



          11                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Excellent.  You just



          12   answered my question before I could ask it.  Thank you.



          13                 And then so we'll -- but we'll need two



          14   hard copies of the exhibits, one for me and one for the



          15   court reporter.  Other than that, you can do it



          16   electronically for the members.



          17                 MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.



          18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  The only -- I think



          19   that's everything on my end.  The only thing I want to



          20   reiterate is that to get those virtual links to Tod



          21   today.  That would be -- you need to get them ASAP.



          22                 MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.  We'll do it.



          23                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Excellent.



          24                 Anything else we need, Tod?  I think that's



          25   everything that I have.
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           1                 MR. BREWER:  No (inaudible) -- got it all,



           2   thank you.



           3                 THE REPORTER:  I'm sorry?



           4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Yeah, he's cutting out.  He



           5   said nothing else.



           6                 MR. DERSTINE:  Alysha, any other issues?



           7                 THE REPORTER:  I'm sorry?



           8                 MS. GILBERT:  No (inaudible) -- but I'm not



           9   sure.



          10                 THE REPORTER:  I couldn't understand that.



          11                 CHMN STAFFORD:  I heard no, I'm not sure.



          12   But I don't think they have anything else to cover.



          13   We're starting to get the glitchiness on the internet



          14   here.



          15                 MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah, I can hear you better



          16   through the wall than I can over the internet.



          17                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Yeah, now that Peaks has



          18   disassembled its stuff, we're just relying on what the



          19   Ranch has here, so --



          20                 Do you need anything else, Robin?



          21                 THE REPORTER:  No.



          22                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  All right.  What



          23   about you, Ms. De Blasi, anything else we need to cover?



          24                 MS. DE BLASI:  Nothing from me.  Thank you.



          25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Excellent.
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           1                 All right.  Thank you all very much.  We



           2   will see you on Tuesday, the 12th.



           3                 MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you.



           4                 MS. DE BLASI:  Thank you.



           5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Thank you.



           6                 We are adjourned.



           7                 (The hearing concluded at 2:18 p.m.)
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           1   STATE OF ARIZONA    )

               COUNTY OF MARICOPA  )

           2



           3
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           4   taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,

               true, and accurate record of the proceedings all done to

           5   the best of my skill and ability; that the proceedings

               were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter reduced

           6   to print under my direction.



           7             I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any of

               the parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the
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